
 

 

  
 

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 
City Hall Council Chambers 

154 South Eighth Street 
 

Grover Beach, CA 
Tuesday, December 14, 2004 

6:30 p.m. 
 
 
CALLED TO ORDER  at 6:30 p.m. by Chair Mires 
 
FLAG SALUTE : by Commissioner Matsuura 
 
ROLL CALL : Present: Commissioners: Barnett, Versaw, Marshall, Calmenson, Matsuura,  
      Chair Mires  

Absent:   Commissioner Leon 
   

STAFF PRESENT: Jake Raper, Community Development Director 
Martin Koczanowicz, City Attorney  
Julie Hawkins, Assistant Planner  
Staff Assistant, Sean Nicholas 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: None 
 
PRESENTATIONS:  None 
 
STAFF COMMENTS:  
 

1. Minor Modifications Report:  
 
Assistant Planner Julie Hawkins gave the staff report. 29/31 Parkview Avenue changed the 
architectural style of the deck from a solid enclosure to decorative railings and increased the 
size of the deck from 137 square feet to 173 square feet. 1150 Loretto Court added an exterior 
staircase to access a previously approved deck. The planning commissioners expressed some 
concern regarding the staircase and wished to move on the discuss the criteria for approval of 
minor modifications. 
 
2. Discussion of establishment of more definitive c riteria for minor modification 

approvals:  
 

Assistant Planner Julie Hawkins gave the staff report. A summary of the minor modifications 
approved since April was presented. 
 
Commissioner Versaw felt that the intent was appropriate, but developers were using it to 
significantly alter their projects. She was concerned with the number of modifications allowed, 
especially those that increased the size of a project. 
 
Commissioner Matsuura suggested that staff and the commissioners throw out ideas to get an 
idea of what they would be comfortable with and what they would think would cause problems. 
He wanted to determine what was considered a zoning issue. He like the idea of establishing a 
threshold. 
 
Commissioner Marshall stated that he was happy with the way the discussion was going and he 
had no further comments. 
 
Commissioner Calmenson stated that he was not concerned with minor changes like the color of 
the paint, slight changes in the sizes of decks and windows, but things that are added to plans, 
like new staircases, should be reviewed by the Planning Commission. 
 
Commissioner Barnett agreed with Commissioner Calmenson. 
 
Commissioner Versaw stated that the Planning Commission has denied projects that fit within 
the rules of the code, but not within the character of the neighborhood. She was not concerned 
with added costs born by the applicant. 
 
 
 

 



����������	

����	�����
�����	��
������������� ���������
�

 

Community Development Director Raper explained that there was currently no set list of criteria 
for approval, but he did not want to make every project come back to the Planning Commission 
for any change. 
 
The Commissioners suggested criteria including limiting the number of modifications, not 
allowing buildings to increase in size, not allowing any additions to be approved with Planning 
Commission review, and allowing some additions if within a certain percentage. 
 
Community Development Director Raper suggested that staff would continue to work with the 
Planning Commission regarding criteria so that there would be better clarification. 
 
Commissioner Calmenson asked if the neighbors were notified of the modification. 
 
Community Development Director Raper stated that they were not, unless they were required to 
go back through the process. 
 
Dave Henry, 1420 Longbranch, stated that he wished to modify his plans, but would require a 
variance to do so.  
 
Community Development Director Raper asked for a consensus on the criteria. 
 
Chair Mires wished to see staff have some discretion. 
 
The Commissioners agreed that the following changes would trigger the project to return to the 
Planning Commission for review: 
 More than five modifications 
 A greater that 150 square foot addition to stuctures 
 Exterior additions such as decks over 150 square feet, stair cases, and roof decks 
 
Community Development Director Raper stated that staff would prepare a resolution for the next 
regular meeting. 

 
CORRESPONDENCE: 
 
Helen McGiver wrote a letter regarding the Circulation Element. 
 
The Planning Commission received Christmas Cards Congress Woman Lois Capps. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

3. Approval of minutes of Regular Planning Commissi on meeting of November 9, 2004 
(Recommendation : Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve the minutes 
as submitted.)  

 
4. Approval of minutes of Special Planning Commissi on Meeting of November 16, 2004 

(Recommendation : Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve the minutes 
as submitted.) 

 
5. Acceptance of Agenda (Recommendation : Staff recommends the Planning 

Commission accept the agenda as presented.) 
 
Commissioner Calmenson corrected the Minutes of November 9, 2004 stating that Item 7 should 
read “Commissioner Calmenson called for a vote,” rather than Chair Mires because he had to step 
down. 
 
On motion by Commissioner Matsuura to approve the minutes of November 9, 2004 as 
amendend, seconded by Commissioner Calmenson, and on the following roll-call vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:   Commissioners Matsuura, Calmenson, Barnett, Versaw, Marshall, and Chair 

 Mires 
ABSENT:   Commissioner Leon 
ABSTAIN:   None 
 
On motion by Commissioner Matsuura to approve the minutes of the Special Planning 
Commission meeting of November 16, 2004, seconded by Commissioner Marshall, and on the 
following roll-call vote, to wit: 
 
 
 



����������	

����	�����
�����	��
������������� ���������
�

 

AYES:   Commissioners Matsuura, Marshall, Barnett, Calmenson, and Chair Mires 
ABSENT:   Commissioners Leon and Versaw 
ABSTAIN:   None 
 
On motion by Commissioner Matsuura to accept the agenda as presented for the meeting of 
December 14, 2004, seconded by Commissioner Calmenson, and on the following roll-call vote, 
to wit: 
 
AYES:   Commissioners Matsuura, Calmenson, Marshall, Barnett, Versaw, and Chair 

 Mires 
ABSENT:   Commissioners Leon 
ABSTAIN:   None 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS  
 

6. Application # 04-078, Cobalt Construction, 182 S . 10th Street (APN 060-102-003)  
 
Assistant Planner Hawkins gave the staff report. She highlighted the parking reduction of the project 
as well as the requirement to comply with the site triangle standard. 
 
Commissioner Marshall was concerned with the site triangle standard and how it is applied. 
 
Community Development Director Raper stated that the standards may be outdated, but it is 
consistently applied to projects. 
 
Commissioner Marshall also was concerned with how the parking reduction was applied to the 
project. He suggested that the parking requirements be updated. 
 
Community Development Director Raper stated that the project met the historical application of the 
reduction. If the project deviated from the standard, it would require a variance. 
 
Commissioner Versaw stated that her interpretation of the parking reduction did not include 
compounding, and the project should require a variance. 
 
Community Development Director Raper explained that perhaps the recommendation was based on 
an incorrect interpretation and the project should go back to staff. The project did not seem to meet 
the requirements to support a variance. 
 
City Attorney Koczanowicz stated that the project must meet the code, despite historic 
interpretations. Just because staff made an error does not mean the applicant has a hardship. 
 
George Garcia, Architect, stated that the parking lot could be required to fit the requirement, but the 
site triangle requirement should not apply because the intersection has a stop sign. He also wished 
to clarify the condition of approval regarding undergrounding utilities. 
 
Commissioner Marshall asked if the existing retaining walls were allowed to be in the Public Right of 
Way with approval of an Encroachment Permit. 
 
Community Development Director Raper added that the Planning Commission must define a 
controlled intersection. 
 
Commissioner Matsuura inquired as to the foot traffic along S. 10th Street. He was concerned about 
children walking to school and not being able to see oncoming traffic. 
 
Commissioner Versaw was concerned with setting a precedent for other projects. She asked if there 
were liability issues. 
 
City Attorney Koczanowicz stated that the Planning Commission could either deny the project or 
make some interpretations. 
 
Chair Mires asked if they could continue the item. 
 
Ron Perkins, Applicant, stated that he would cut off the part of the building that was within the site 
triangle.  
 
Community Development Director stated that he did not want to support a misinterpretation of the 
parking reductions, but if the applicant worked with the Air Pollution Control District to develop a Trip 
Reduction Plan, the project could meet the parking reduction standards. 
 



����������	

����	�����
�����	��
������������� ���������
�

 

The Commission agreed that that would be an appropriate solution. 
 
Chair Mires opened the public hearing. 
 
No members of the public came to speak about the project. 
Chair Mires closed the public hearing and called for a motion. 
 
On motion by Commissioner Versaw to approve Architectural Approval for a 585 square foot 
addition to an existing office builidng, seconded by Commissioner Marshall, and on the following 
roll-call vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:   Commissioners Versaw, Marshall, Barnett, Matsuura, Calmenson and Chair 

Mires 
NOES:   None 
ABSENT:   Commissioner Leon  
ABSTAIN:   None  
 
the foregoing Resolution No. 04-084 was adopted on this 14th day of December. 

 
7. Application #04-082, Day Construction, 1162 Lore tto Court (APN 060-567-008)  

 
Staff Assistant Sean Nicholas gave the staff report. 
 
There were no questions of staff. 
 
Chair Mires opened the public hearing. 
 
John Larson, Applicant, representing Day Construction asked when his project would actually be 
approved. 
 
Staff Assistant Nicholas stated that there was a five day appeal period, then the project would be 
considered approved. 
 
Commissioner Calmenson asked if the windows were dual paned and if energy calculations were 
required. 
 
Chair Mires closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Marshall wanted to modify Condition of Approval 5 regarding the conditions of the 
original resolution. 
 
Chair Mires called for a motion. 
 
On a motion by Commissioner Calmenson, seconded by Commissioner Matsuura, and on the 
following   roll-call vote, to wit: 

 
AYES:  Commissioners Calmenson, Matsuura, Marshall, Barnett, Versaw and Chair  
  Mires 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT:  Commissioner Leon 
ABSTAIN:  None 

 
the foregoing Resolution No. 04-085 was adopted on this 14th day of December, 2004. 
 

8. Application 04-083, City of Grover Beach, Sign O rdinance Amendment  
 
Community Development Director Raper gave the staff report. The intent was to start the process of 
updating the sign ordinance in regard to temporary signs. 
 
Commissioner Versaw stated that political signs should be addressed. 
 
City Attorney Koczanowicz explained that his office was working on the issue regarding political 
signs and updating the ordinance. 
 
Chair Mires opened the public hearing. 
 
No member of the public spoke regarding the project. 
 
Chair Mires closed the public hearing and called for a motion. 



����������	

����	�����
�����	��
������������� ���������
�

 

On motion by Commissioner Calmenson, seconded by Commissioner Matsuura, and on the 
following roll-call vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners Calmenson, Matsuura, Barnett, Versaw, Marshall, Chair Mires 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Commissioners Leon 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
the foregoing Resolution No. 04-086 was adopted as modified on this 9th day of November. 
 
CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS : 
 

9. Application #04-062, Paul Bischoff, 1547 Brighto n Avenue (APN 060-175-047)  
 
Assistant Planner Hawkins gave the staff report. The project was continued from the last regular 
meeting of November 9, 2004. She stated that the applicant had just submitted new plans and staff 
was not prepared to comment. 
 
Chair Mires opened the public hearing. 
 
Paul Bischoff, Applicant, stated that he made the project two stories and still kept the tree. 
 
Chair Mires continued the item to the Regular Planning Commission meeting of January 11, 2004. 
 

10. City of Grover Beach – Environmental Determinat ion and Update of the General Plan 
Circulation Element including Goals, Policies and P rograms related to the City Wide 
Circulation Element .  

 
Community Development Director Raper gave the staff report. The Circulation Element had been 
continued from the Special Planning Commission Meeting of November 16, 2004. 
 
Commissioner Matsuura asked if his previous question regarding the percentage of sidewalks in the 
City had been addressed. 
 
Commissioner Calmenson stated that he did not think speed bumps were a bad solution for traffic 
calming. 
 
Commissioner Versaw mentioned that there were many different designs to speed bumps. She 
asked if there had been adequate public involvement in the drafting of the Circulation Element. She 
also mentioned that she wanted to see lit crosswalks like those in downtown San Luis Obispo. 
 
City Attorney Koczanowicz stated that statistically speaking, lit crosswalks were more dangerous 
because they gave the pedestrian a false sense of security. 
 
Chair Mires opened the public hearing. 
 
Liz Ducas, 555 Seabright Avenue, wanted to see the traffic kept on the main arterials. She then read 
the letter submitted by Helen McGiver. 
 
Commissioner Matsuura asked if the TANG committee felt there was enough public input into the 
drafting of the element. 
 
Jesse Lemas, 1384 Mentone Avenue, stated that she wished to see more speed bumps. She also 
wanted to see more public education in regard to the element update and other traffic issues. 
 
Chair Mires closed the public hearing. 
 
On motion by Commissioner Barnett to recommend adoption of the Negative Declaration and 
recommend adoption of the Circulation Element, seconded by Commissioner Calmenson, and on 
the following roll-call vote, to wit: 
 

AYES:  Commissioners Barnett, Calmenson, Versaw, Marshall, Chair Mires 
NOES:  Commissioner Matsuura 
ABSENT: Commissioners Leon 
ABSTAIN: None 
 

the foregoing Resolution No. 04-087 was adopted on this 14th day of December, 2004. 
 
 



����������	

����	�����
�����	��
������������� ���������
�

 

COMMISSIONER’S COMMENTS:  
 
Commissioner Matsuura reported on the City Council Meeting of December 6, 2004. He stated that 
the fire sprinkler ordinance was the biggest debate. 
 
Commissioner Matsuura stated that he had concerns with how the discussion of a few projects was 
conducted that evening. He was also concerned with the attendance of Commissioner Leon to the 
Planning Commission meetings. The other Commissioners agreed and Chair Mires said he would 
follow up with Commissioner Leon. 
 
Commissioner Marshall wished to address the memo that Assistant Planner Hawkins included 
regarding minutes. Commissioner Versaw stated that she was concerned because all of the other 
cities that she contacted required comprehensive minutes for Planning Commission meetings. She 
suggested hiring a “minute clerk” to record the meetings. Community Development Director Raper 
stated that it could be a possibility for next year’s budget plan. 
 
Assistant Planner Hawkins went over Chapters 1 and 2 of the Planning Commissioner’s Handbook. 
Commissioner Calmenson questioned section 2 that stated that visiting the project site is not 
recommended because it can create a bias. City Attorney Koczanowicz clarified that is was a issue 
of receiving a fair trial. Assistant Planner Hawkins referred the section about having good relations 
with staff. She mentioned that raising concerns or asking clarifying questions prior to a meeting 
would improve the dialogue and speed up the hearing items. She asked if there was anything that 
staff could do to improve the process. Commissioner Matsuura asked if the packets could be 
delivered sooner. Assistant Planner Hawkins stated that with the new policy, that could be achieved. 
Chapters 3 and 4 were assigned for next months meeting. 
 
Commissioner Matsuura was scheduled to attend the City Council meetings in December. 
 
ADJOURNMENT was at 10:45p.m. to the Regular Planning Commission Meeting on Tuesday, 
January 11, 2005, at 6:30 p.m. 
 

 
/s/ CHAIR MIRES 
 
/s/ SECRETARY TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
JAKE RAPER, JR., AICP, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
  


